

In accordance with section 113(g) of the CAA, for a period of thirty (30) days following the date of publication of this document, the Agency will accept written comments relating to the proposed consent decree. EPA or the Department of Justice may withdraw or withhold consent to the proposed consent decree if the comments disclose facts or considerations that indicate that such consent is inappropriate, improper, inadequate, or inconsistent with the requirements of the Act.

III. Additional Information About Commenting on the Proposed Consent Decree

Submit your comments, identified by Docket ID No. EPA-HQ-OGC-2022-0862, via <https://www.regulations.gov>. Once submitted, comments cannot be edited or removed from this docket. EPA may publish any comment received to its public docket. Do not submit to EPA's docket at <https://www.regulations.gov> any information you consider to be Confidential Business Information (CBI) or other information whose disclosure is restricted by statute. Multimedia submissions (audio, video, etc.) must be accompanied by a written comment. The written comment is considered the official comment and should include discussion of all points you wish to make. EPA will generally not consider comments or comment contents located outside of the primary submission (*i.e.*, on the web, cloud, or other file sharing system). For additional submission methods, the full EPA public comment policy, information about CBI or multimedia submissions, and general guidance on making effective comments, please visit <https://www.epa.gov/dockets/commenting-epa-dockets>. For additional information about submitting information identified as CBI, please contact the person listed in the **FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT** section of this document. Note that written comments containing CBI and submitted by mail may be delayed and deliveries or couriers will be received by scheduled appointment only.

If you submit an electronic comment, EPA recommends that you include your name, mailing address, and an email address or other contact information in the body of your comment. This ensures that you can be identified as the submitter of the comment and allows EPA to contact you in case EPA cannot read your comment due to technical difficulties or needs further information on the substance of your comment. Any identifying or contact information provided in the body of a comment will

be included as part of the comment that is placed in the official public docket and made available in EPA's electronic public docket. If EPA cannot read your comment due to technical difficulties and cannot contact you for clarification, EPA may not be able to consider your comment.

Use of the <https://www.regulations.gov> website to submit comments to EPA electronically is EPA's preferred method for receiving comments. The electronic public docket system is an "anonymous access" system, which means EPA will not know your identity, email address, or other contact information unless you provide it in the body of your comment.

Please ensure that your comments are submitted within the specified comment period. Comments received after the close of the comment period will be marked "late." EPA is not required to consider these late comments.

Gautam Srinivasan,
Associate General Counsel.

[FR Doc. 2022-23576 Filed 10-28-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6560-50-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[DOCKET NO. 22-29]

MVM Logistics, Complainant v. MSC Mediterranean Shipping Company (USA) Inc., Respondent; Notice of Filing of Complaint and Assignment

Served: October 25, 2022.

Notice is given that a complaint has been filed with the Federal Maritime Commission (Commission) by MVM Logistics, hereinafter "Complainant," against MSC Mediterranean Shipping Company (USA) Inc. as agent for Mediterranean Shipping Company, S.A., Geneva, hereinafter "Respondent." Complainant states that it is a corporation organized under the laws of California. Complainant identifies the Respondent as a corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York and agent for the vessel-operating ocean common carrier that is headquartered in Geneva, Switzerland.

Complainant alleges that Respondent violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c) in its practices regarding the return of containers and related assessment of charges. An answer to the complaint is due to be filed with the Commission within twenty-five (25) days after the date of service. The full text of the complaint can be found in the Commission's Electronic Reading Room at <https://www2.fmc.gov/readingroom/proceeding/22-29/>.

This proceeding has been assigned to Office of Administrative Law Judges. The initial decision of the presiding officer in this proceeding shall be issued by October 25, 2023, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by May 9, 2024.

William Cody,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2022-23565 Filed 10-28-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-02-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Docket No. 22-30]

Samsung Electronics America, Inc., Complainant v. Zim Integrated Shipping Services Ltd., Respondent; Notice of Filing of Complaint and Assignment

Served: October 25, 2022.

Notice is given that a complaint has been filed with the Federal Maritime Commission (Commission) by Samsung Electronics America, Inc, hereinafter "Complainant," against Zim Integrated Shipping Services Ltd., hereinafter "Respondent." Complainant states that it is a corporation organized under the law of the State of New York with its principal place of business located in New Jersey. Complainant identifies the Respondent as a vessel-operating common carrier with a corporate office in Haifa, Israel, conducting business in the United States through ZIM American Integrated Shipping Services Company Co. LLC, with its principal corporate office located in Norfolk, VA.

Complainant alleges that Respondent violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c), 41102(d), 41104(a)(3), 41104(a)(10), 41104(a)(14), and 41104(a)(15) and 46 CFR 545.4 and 545.5 regarding its practices and the billing and assessment of charges on the shipments of the Complainant's container cargo. An answer to the complaint is due to be filed with the Commission within twenty-five (25) days after the date of service. The full text of the complaint can be found in the Commission's Electronic Reading Room at <https://www2.fmc.gov/readingroom/proceeding/22-30/>.

This proceeding has been assigned to Office of Administrative Law Judges. The initial decision of the presiding officer in this proceeding shall be issued by October 25, 2023, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by May 9, 2024.

William Cody,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2022-23589 Filed 10-28-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-02-P